1996

# Joseph M. Wisden v. Washington County : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## **JURISDICTION**

This appeal is taken from the 30 November 1995, JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL pursuant to Respondent's 2 October 1995, MOTION TO DISMISS, the Honorable G. Rand Beacham, presiding.

Pursuant to the granting of Respondent's pre-answer MOTION TO DISMISS from the District Court below, Petitioner appeals to the Utah Court of Appeals, which has appellate jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to the Utah Judicial Code, U.C.A. §78-2(a)-3(2)(a), also Article 8 Section 5, Utah State Constitution.

## **ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL**

**POINT #1.** DID THE DISTRICT COURT ERR IN GRANTING RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS? IN OTHER WORDS, WAS PETITIONER'S PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW OF G. R. A. M. A. REQUEST DENIALS FATALLY FLAWED?

### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

The Standard of Review considered under a Rule 12(b) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim, is that all reasonable inferences made with regard to the original complaint (*PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW OF G. R. A. M. A. REQUEST DENIALS, in this case*) and the facts alleged are to be construed as true and considered in a light most favorable to the Petitioner.

1. FREEGARD v. FIRST W. NAT'L BANK, 738 P.2d 614 (Utah 1987)
2. MOUNTEER v. UTAH POWER & LIGHT CO., 823 P.2d 1055 (Utah 1991)
3. RICHMOND NEWSPAPERS INC. ET AL. v. VIRGINIA ET AL., 448 U.S. 555 (1980)
3. SOC'Y OF PROFESSIONAL JOURNALISTS v. SECRETARY OF LABOR, 616 F.Supp. 569 (D.Utah 1985)
3. THE SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL JOURNALISTS v. BRIGGS ET AL., 675 F.Supp 1308 (D.Utah 1987)

**POINT #2.** DOES THE UTAH GOVERNMENT RECORDS ACCESS AND MANAGEMENT ACT, U.C.A. §63-2-101 ET SEQ, IDENTIFY, DEFINE, OR EVEN CONTEMPLATE “NON-RECORDS?”

**STANDARD OF REVIEW**

This issue on review is governed by the clear and plain language of the statute and the statutes’ definition of the term “non-record.” This review is an issue of first impression by an appellate court in Utah. Statutes and appellate court decisions which may bear influence on the issues under review might include:

1. Utah Code Annotated, §63-2-101 et seq., [Governmental Records Access and Management Act (G. R. A. M. A.)]
2. Washington County Ordinance, #529 et seq.

**POINT #3.** DID THE DISTRICT COURT IMPROPERLY APPLY U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(b)(vi) TO PETITIONER’S CASE?

**STANDARD OF REVIEW**

This issue on review is governed by the clear and plain language of the statute and the application of U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(a) in contradistinction to U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(b)(vi) as applied to Petitioner’s case. This review is an issue of first impression by an appellate court in Utah. Statutes and appellate court decisions which may bear influence on the issues under review might include:

1. U. C. A. §63-2-103(17)
2. U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(a)
3. U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(b)(vi)
4. U. C. A. §63-2-201(2)

**POINT #4.** CAN PETITIONER BE EXPECTED OR OBLIGATED BY HIS GOVERNMENT TO TRAVEL BEYOND THE GEOGRAPHIC BOUNDARIES OF THE COUNTY IN WHICH HE LIVES, IN ORDER FOR HIM TO OBTAIN ACCESS TO THE RECORDS HE SEEKS. IN OTHER WORDS, IS THERE AN ISSUE OF CONVENIENCE AT PLAY TO DENY PETITIONER ACCESS TO THE RECORDS HE SEEKS?

#### **STANDARD OF REVIEW**

The Standard of Review considered under a Rule 12(b) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim, is that all reasonable inferences made with regard to the original complaint (*a PETITION FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW OF G. R. A. M. A. REQUEST DENIALS in this case*) are to be construed as true and in a light most favorable to the Petitioner.

1. MOUNTEER v. UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, 823 P.2d 1055 (Utah 1991)
2. SOCIETY OF PROF. JOURNALISTS v. BRIGGS, 675 F.Supp 1308 (D.Utah 1987)
3. RICHMOND NEWSPAPERS INC. ET AL. v. VIRGINIA ET AL., 448 U.S. 555 (1980)

#### **VERBATIM RECITALS OF CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS**

##### Utah Constitution, Article 8, Section 5

The district court shall have original jurisdiction in all matters except as limited by this constitution or by statute, and power to issue all extraordinary writs. The district court shall have appellate jurisdiction as provided by statute. The jurisdiction of all other courts, both original and appellate, shall be provided by statute. Except for matters filed originally with the Supreme Court, there shall be in all cases an appeal of right from the court of original jurisdiction to a court with appellate jurisdiction over the cause.

##### Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b)(6)

(b) how presented. Every defense, in law or fact, to claim for relief in any pleading, whether a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim, shall be asserted in the responsive pleading thereto if one is required, except that the following defenses may at the option of the pleader be made by motion: (1) lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3) improper venue, (4) insufficiency of process, (5) insufficiency of service of process, (6) failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, (7) failure to join an indispensable party.



Utah Code Annotated 63-2-103(17)

“Public record” means a record that is not private, controlled, or protected and that is not exempt from disclosure as provided in Subsection 63-2-201 (3)(b).

Utah Code Annotated 63-2-103(18)(a)

“Record” means all books, letters, documents, papers, maps, plans, photographs, films, cards, tapes, recordings, electronic data, or other documentary materials regardless of physical form or characteristics;

Utah Code Annotated 63-2-103(18)(b)(vi)

(b) “Record” does not mean:

(vi) books and other materials that are cataloged, indexed, or inventoried and contained in the collections of libraries open to the public, regardless of physical form or characteristics of the material;

Utah Code Annotated 63-2-201(2)

All records are public unless otherwise expressly provided by statute.

Utah Code Annotated 63-2-201(3)(b)

(3) The following records are not public;

(b) records to which access is restricted pursuant to court rule, another state statute, federal statute, or federal regulation, including records for which access is governed or restricted as a condition of participation in a state or federal program or for receiving state or federal funds.

## **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

### **Nature of the Case**

Petitioner sought Judicial review of Respondent’s denial of access to public records pursuant to the Utah Government Records Access and Management Act (G. R. A. M. A.), U.C.A. §63-2-101 et seq, also Washington County Ordinance #529 et seq.

### **Course of the Proceedings and Disposition in the Court Below**

1. On 8, 9, 10, 11, and 14 August 1995, Petitioner/Appellant physically attempted to gain access to and review certain public records housed at the Washington County Attorney’s Office in St. George, Utah. (**Record, pages 2**

**thru 5)**

2. On 9 August 1995, Petitioner submitted a written G. R. A. M. A. request to the custodian of the records of the Washington County Attorneys' Office, which was denied by Eric Ludlow, by letter on 16 August 1995.

**(Record, page 5, ¶ #31)**

3. On 11 August 1995, pursuant to the in person denials of 8, 9, 10, & 11 August 1995, and pursuant to Washington County Ordinance No. 529, at ¶ 10(B)(1), Petitioner filed an administrative appeal to the Washington County Commission. **(Record, pages 2 thru 6, ¶¶ #1, #4, #11, #12, #21, #22, #24, #25, & #34)**

4. Twenty-One (21) days then passed without the County Commission responding to Petitioner's administrative appeal, and Petitioner sought remedy in District Court for judicial review of the Washington Countys' denials of Petitioner's G. R. A. M. A. Requests, on 8 September 1995. **(Record, page 6, ¶ #34 and Record, page 1)**

5. Respondent/Appellee was served the SUMMONS and PETITION on 12 September 1995, by one (1) Gary Stubbs, a local process server. **(Record, page 11)**

6. The RETURN OF SERVICE was filed with the Fifth Judicial District Court on 14 September 1995. **(Record, page 12)**

7. On or about 2 October 1995, Respondent caused to be filed its MOTION TO DISMISS, arguing that the documents sought by the Petitioner were "non-records" "subject to GRAMA." **(Record, page 17)**

8. On 3 October 1995, the District Court entered a DEFAULT CERTIFICATE against the Respondent. **(Record, page 13)**

9. On 11 October 1995, Petitioner filed his OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS. **(Record, page 43)**

10. On 11 October 1995, Petitioner filed his MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT. (**Record, page 6, ¶ #48**)

11. On 23 October 1995, Petitioner filed a NOTICE TO SUBMIT on Respondents' MOTION TO DISMISS. (**Record, page 57**)

12. On 23 October 1995, Petitioner filed a NOTICE TO SUBMIT on his MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT. (**Record, page 59**)

13. On 26 October 1995, Petitioner caused an AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE to be filed against Judge G. Rand Beacham. (**Record, page 61**)

14. On 13 November 1995, the Court issued an ORDER CERTIFYING AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE TO JUDGE J. PHILIP EVES. (**Record, page 142**)

15. On 15 November 1995, Respondent caused to be filed its MOTION TO SET ASIDE DEFAULT CERTIFICATE and MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT. (**Record, pages 64 & 66 respectively**)

16. On 17 November 1995, Respondent caused to be filed its OBJECTION TO PLAINTIFF'S [sic] NOTICE TO SUBMIT THE MOTION TO DISMISS; AND MOTION AND MEMORANDUM TO ACCEPT REPLY MEMORANDUM, DEFENDANTS' [sic] REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS, and SECOND NOTICE TO SUBMIT MOTION TO DISMISS. (**Record, pages 91, 94, & 139 respectively**)

17. On 17 November 1995, Respondent also caused to be filed its OBJECTION TO PLAINTIFF'S [sic] NOTICE TO SUBMIT THE MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, DEFENDANT'S [sic] RULE 56(f) MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO RESPOND TO PLAINTIFF'S [sic] MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT'S [sic] RULE 56 (f) MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO RESPOND TO PLAINTIFF'S [sic] MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, and AFFIDAVIT OF BRUCE M. PRITCHETT, JR. (**Record, pages 78, 81, 83, & 88 respectively**)

18. On 22 November 1995, the Court entered its RULING regarding Petitioner's 26 October 1995, AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE, denying Petitioner's effort to recuse Judge Beacham. **(Record, page 143)**

19. On 30 November 1995, the Court below rendered its JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, which was caused to be mailed to the Petitioner on 1 December 1995. **(Record, page 147)**

20. On 3 January 1995, Petitioner filed his NOTICE OF APPEAL in this matter. **(Record, page 153)**

### **Statement of the Facts**

1. On Tuesday, 8 August 1995, at approximately 8:30 am., Petitioner attempted to gain access to the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 N. 200 East in St. George, Utah, to exercise his 1st Amendment Right to access to public documents contained at that location. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #1)**

2. There is a new partition built in the reception area of the County Attorney's Office, with a locked door blocking access to the Law Library. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #2)**

3. Upon discovering the blocked access to the Law Library, Petitioner asked the receptionist (Jane Doe #1) who was sitting there, for access to the Law Library. This constitutes Petitioner's first (1st), in person, G. R. A. M. A. Request. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #3)**

4. The receptionist informed Petitioner that the Law Library was no longer available or open to the public, and she made no effort to offer or allow him beyond the door blocking access. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #4)**

5. Petitioner requested to speak to someone with more authority than her and asked the receptionist to get someone else for him to speak to.

**(Record, page 2 ¶ #5)**

6. Jane Doe #1 left the reception area and went back into the office area, beyond Petitioner's view. A secretary for one of the attorneys returned (Jane Doe #2)) and informed Petitioner that the Law Library was not public, it was for the exclusive use of the Washington County attorneys. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #6)**

7. Jane Doe #2 informed Petitioner that all the Law books and information he desired to review or obtain could be found at the Washington County Public Library over on Main Street. She also stated that all the law books contained in the Law Library at the Washington County Attorneys office were contained on CD's (compact disc) for use on the computer terminals at the Public Library. **(Record, page 2 ¶ #7)**

8. Petitioner asked to speak to Eric Ludlow, and was informed that he was not there. Petitioner asked to speak to any other attorney in the office and was informed they were all over at the courthouse. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #8)**

9. As of 8 August 1995, at approximately 10:30 am. there were no law books or legal reference books available on CD or by any other media at the Washington County Library, on Main Street, in St. George, Utah. Jane Doe #2's representation to Petitioner was a lie and therefore a fraud. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #9)**

10. The above facts stated in ¶¶ #1 through #9, constituted Petitioner's first (1st) G. R. A. M. A. request denial by the Washington County Attorney's Office. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #10)**

11. On Wednesday, 9 August 1995, at approximately 8:45 am., Petitioner again attempted to gain access to the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 N. 200 East in St. George, Utah, to exercise his 1st Amendment Right to access to public documents contained at that location. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #11)**

12. Petitioner again asked the receptionist (Jane Doe #1) who was sitting there, for access to the Law Library. The receptionist informed Petitioner that the Law Library was not available or open to the public, and she made no effort to offer or allow him beyond the door blocking access. This constitutes Petitioner's second (2nd), in person, G. R. A. M. A. Request. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #12)**

13. On first entering the County Attorney's Office, Brent Langston, an Assistant Washington County Attorney, had just preceded Petitioner into the office, by about 30 seconds. While Petitioner waited for the receptionist to answer a call from the back, he could hear Brent Langston conversing with others in back and out of view from the reception area. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #13)**

14. Petitioner then asked Jane Doe #1 for her name, and she asked him to repeat his question. Petitioner again asked her for her name and she refused to give it to him. **(Record, page 3 ¶ #14)**

15. Petitioner informed Jane Doe #1 that she was a public servant and she again refused to give him her name. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #15)**

16. Petitioner asked to speak to Eric Ludlow and Jane Doe #1 informed him that Ludlow was not there. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #16)**

17. Petitioner asked to speak to any attorney that was there and Jane Doe #1 advised him that there were no attorney's in the building. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #17)**

18. Petitioner informed Jane Doe #1 that he had just seen Brent Langston enter the building, and Jane Doe #1 responded that he had left. (Less than 2 minutes had expired since Petitioner entered the Office.) Petitioner again insisted to speak to an attorney and Jane Doe #1 responded that all the attorneys were over at the courthouse. Jane Doe #1 lied to Petitioner in two (2) instances. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #18)**

19. Petitioner immediately went to the courthouse and no attorneys were there. He checked the foyer and the courtrooms and all were empty. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #19)**

20. The above facts stated in ¶¶ #11 through #19, constituted Petitioner's second (2nd) G. R. A. M. A. request denial. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #20)**

21. On Thursday, 10 August 1995, at approximately 9:00 am., Petitioner again attempted to gain access to the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 N. 200 East in St. George, Utah, to exercise his 1st Amendment Right to access to public documents contained at that location. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #21)**

22. Petitioner asked the secretary (Jane Doe #3) who was standing there, for access to the Law Library. The secretary informed Petitioner that the Law Library was not available or open to the public, and she made no effort to offer or allow him beyond the door blocking access. This constitutes Petitioner's third (3rd), in person, G. R. A. M. A. Request. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #22)**

23. The above facts stated in ¶¶ #21 & #22, constituted Petitioner's third (3rd) G. R. A. M. A. request denial. **(Record, page 4 ¶ #23)**

24. On Friday, 11 August 1995, at approximately 8:45 am., Petitioner again attempted to gain access to the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 N. 200 East in St. George, Utah, to exercise his 1st





32. The description of the records sought to be inspected include, but are not limited to: United States Code; Pacific Reporter, all volumes; Pacific Reporter 2nd, Vol's. 1 through the present; Pacific Reporter Digest, 1st, 2nd, & 3rd editions; American Jurisprudence, all volumes; Words and Phrases, all volumes; Corpus Juris Secundum, all volumes; American Law Review, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, & Federal editions, all volumes; Utah Law Review, all volumes; Federal Reports, all volumes, U. S. Reports, Lawyer's edition, all volumes; Black's Law Dictionary; and any other reference material, book, or periodical maintained in the Law Library or any attorneys' offices housed at the Washington County Attorney's Office at the above address. **(Record, page 6 ¶ #32)**

33. The Law Library in question remains open to "licensed" attorneys, establishing a special class of persons in Utah, and violating the provisions of establishment of a title of nobility. **(Record, page 6 ¶ #33)**

34. On 11 August 1995, pursuant to Washington County Ordinance No. 529, at ¶ 10(B)(1), Petitioner filed an administrative appeal to the Washington County Commission. After twenty-one (21) days passed, Petitioner petitioned the District Court for judicial review of the Washington County's denials of his G. R. A. M. A. Requests. **(Record, page 6 ¶ #34)**

35. The Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 No. 200 East, in St. George, Utah, has traditionally been open to the public. **(Record, page 6 ¶ #35)**

36. The Petitioner in this cause of action has used the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 No. 200 East, in St. George, Utah, since September 1989, establishing a tradition of six (6) years of exercising his constitutional right of free access, pursuant to the 1st and 14th amendments to the U.S. Constitution. **(Record, page 6 ¶ #36)**

37. It is necessary and imperative that Petitioner have free access to the Law Library at the Washington County Attorney's Office at 178 No. 200 East, in St. Gorge, Utah, as to deprive him of such also denies him his constitutional right of self representation to the various lawsuits (including this one) he presently has pending. **(Record, page 7 ¶ #37)**

38. It is entirely unreasonable for the Washington County Attorney to expect the Petitioner, who is indigent, to travel outside Washington County, to Utah County, Salt Lake County, and even outside Utah to a foreign state, namely Nevada, to exercise his rights to free access of public documents and self representation of his law suits. **(Record, page 7 ¶ #38)**

39. Judge Beacham, presiding in the Court below, asserts in his 30 November 1995, JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, that Petitioner failed to meet the requirement of Rule 56, suggesting an improper or absence of supporting affidavit. **(Record, page 148, last paragraph)**

40. Judge Beacham, ruled in his JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, that Respondent's MOTION TO DISMISS, was "clearly a Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim on which relief can be granted."

**(Record, page 149, first paragraph)**

41. Judge Beacham found in his JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, that the term "public documents", are not defined in G. R. A. M. A. **(Record, page 150, first paragraph)**

42. The "GRAMA" Judge Beacham refers to is presumed to mean the Utah Government Records Access and Management Act, U. C. A. §63-2-101 et seq. **(Not in Record)**

43. G. R. A. M. A. at U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(a) defines "Record" to mean all "books, letters, documents, [etc.]" Therefore, a "document" is a

“record” and Petitioner’s use of the word “document” is no different than if he were to use the word “record.” The words “document” and “record” are synonymous. **(Not in Record)**

44. G. R. A. M. A. at U. C. A. §63-2-103(17) defines “public record” to mean “a record that is not private, controlled, or protected and that is not exempt from disclosure as provided in Subsection 63-2-201 (3)(b). *[Subsection 63-2-201 (3)(b) is not applicable in this particular case.]* **(Not in Record)**

45. G. R. A. M. A. at U. C. A. §63-2-201(2) also states that, “All records are public unless otherwise expressly provided by statute.” **(Not in Record)**

46. Judge Beacham, referencing G. R. A. M. A. at U. C. A. §63-2-103(18)(b)(vi) ruled in his JUDGMENT OF DISMISSAL, that “The fatal flaw in the Petition is that books *[which were records Petitioner sought to inspect]* are not records to which GRAMA applies.” **(Record, page 149, first paragraph)**

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