1996

Joseph M. Wisden v. Washington County : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This appeal was filed late, therefore, this Court lacks jurisdiction.

The Government Records Access and Management Act (GRAMA) does not require a public agency which deals in sensitive matters to allow its secure offices to be entered by the public for the public's review, for lengthy periods of time, of law books housed

there. That is especially true where the books are not agency records but are copyrighted materials, and which are 1) catalogued, indexed and available in public libraries, and 2) available by purchase on the open market. Such works are not records of the agency subject to GRAMA.

GRAMA also does not require agencies to produce massive volumes of general records, but only requires the production of records pursuant to specific, limited requests for production.

When a person chooses to represent himself in litigation, he necessarily forgoes some rights which may include availability of law books. Both this Court and federal courts hold that even prisoners, who are recognized as having perhaps the greatest need for law books, waive that right when they voluntarily choose to represent themselves.

The County Attorney's Office has no duty to maintain and allow access in their secure offices to a law library for the benefit of non-prisoners who choose to represent themselves in litigation.

Appellant has no right to access the County Attorney's secure offices, and seeks only a more convenient source of generally publicly available materials.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

APPELLANT'S APPEAL IS UNTIMELY AND THIS COURT DOES NOT HAVE JURISDICTION.

The order from which the Appellant appeals was entered November 30, 1995 (R. at 147-152; Appellant's Statement of Case, para. 19). Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal on Wednesday, January 3, 1996. Being filed on Wednesday, January 3, it was untimely and this Court does not have jurisdiction. Debry v. Fidelity National Title Ins. Co., 828 P.2d 520 (Utah App. 1992); State v. Sampson, 806 P.2d 233, 234 (Utah App. 1991); Madsen v. Borthick, 769 P.2d 245, 250 (Utah 1988); Armstrong Rubber Co. v. Bastian, 657 P.2d 1346, 1348 (Utah 1983).

Although jurisdiction can be raised at any time, respondent timely objected. See Objection to Notice of Appeal filed in the Court below. (R. at 156-157.)

No motion for extension of time to file Notice of Appeal was ever made under Utah Rule of Appellate Procedure 4(e).

POINT II

GRAMA DOES NOT REQUIRE A PUBLIC AGENCY TO ALLOW ACCESS TO THE PUBLIC OFFICE IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH GRAMA REQUESTS.

The Governmental Records Access and Management Act (hereafter "GRAMA"), Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-101 et seq., requires a governmental agency, upon a specific request of a private

citizen, to produce certain records requested by that private citizen. Utah Code Ann. §§ 63-2-201, 204. Nowhere does GRAMA require the governmental agency to allow the private citizen access into the corridors, halls, rooms or offices of the governmental agency.

Appellant claims that GRAMA was violated, not because the County Attorney failed to give him copies of reasonably limited, specific records he requested, but because he was denied general access into the physical facilities of the County Attorney's Office, behind locked doors and partitions in that office. See, e.g., Appellant's Statement of Facts paragraphs 1, 3, 11, 21, 22, 24, 28, and 29, wherein appellant alleges that he "attempted to gain access to the law library at the Washington County Attorney's Office," (emphasis added), or alleges the equivalent of that statement concerning gaining access.

Appellant admits that a partition exists with a locked door blocking access to the library within the County Attorney's Office. See, Appellant's Facts at para. 2, 4, and 22.

The law library at the Washington County Attorney's Office is centrally located within the office. See, Facts, above, para. 1. It is directly connected to offices of several personnel in the County Attorney's Office, including Deputy County Attorneys. See Facts, above, paras. 2-3. In addition, in order to get to the library, one must pass by or through offices of personnel of the Washington County Attorney's Office or a main filing room

where confidential information and files are held concerning prosecutions and other serious matters being handled by the County Attorney's Office. See, Facts, above, paras. 2-3.

From the law library one may easily overhear the conversations of a confidential nature among office staff in the County Attorney's Office. See, Facts, above, para. 3.

Nothing in GRAMA requires a governmental agency to compromise its own security and allow private parties to enter areas where they can access confidential files, overhear confidential communications, assault personnel, etc.

Access to the general public would create serious interference with the agency and its function. See Facts, above, paras. 3-4. There are two strong safety concerns: life and property. From the library there is easy, quick access to nearby confidential files relating to serious prosecutions and to other offices of County Attorneys. Id. Tampering of files, witness statements, and evidence could occur without constant surveillance of the library if members of the general public are allowed access.

Because the County Attorney's Office prosecutes major crime, safety of personnel is also a concern. Frisking or searching members of the general public or installing equipment to check for weapons would also be an interference with personnel and public funds, but may be necessary if the courts force the respondent to allow the general public into the office with easy

access to the agency's personnel. Besides security concerns for confidential information and personnel, the following are also examples of general interference if the general public is allowed access to the library:

1. Personnel being interrupted by those desiring access or entrance;

2. Personnel wasting time to oversee the public in the library to protect from vandalism;

3. Personnel being interrupted with questions from lay people about location of books, how to do legal research, etc.;

4. Personnel being disrupted checking carrying cases of those leaving to ensure materials are not removed.

5. Personnel being disrupted to keep order, if necessary, (e.g. if young people have access for school projects);

6. Personnel being disrupted, if immediate copies are allowed, for making copies or overseeing copying, keeping track of payments, giving receipts for payments, reconciling accounts relating to payments, obtaining and making change for payment, etc.

Because such problems could exist with the opening of an agency's office doors to the general public, the Legislature was well justified in not requiring access into an agency's offices. No such requirement exists. Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-201 recognizes the competing interests between interference with an agency's duties and functions in requiring production of records

in a specific format only where there will be no such interference:

(8)(a) A governmental entity is not required to create a record in response to a request.

(b) Upon request, a governmental entity shall provide a record in a particular format if:

(i) the governmental entity is able to do so without unreasonably interfering with the governmental entity's duties and responsibilities; and

(ii) the requester agrees to pay the governmental entity for its additional costs actually incurred in providing the record in the requested format.

Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-201(8)(a)(b).

POINT III

APPELLANT DID NOT REQUEST SPECIFIC DOCUMENTS FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY INVOLVED TO PRODUCE, BUT SOUGHT MASSIVE SETS OF VOLUMES WHICH INCLUDED BASICALLY THE ENTIRE LIBRARY.

Utah Code Annotated requires a specific narrow request for records from the requestor prior to an obligation to produce records:

(1) A person making a request for a record shall furnish the governmental entity with a written request containing his name, mailing address, daytime telephone number, if available, and a description of the records requested that identifies the record with reasonable specificity.

Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-204(1) (emphasis added).

Specific requirements apply when the number of pages requested exceeds 50 pages of record. Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-201(9).

The right to inspect public records is subject to the reasonable specificity requirement of § 63-2-204. See Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-201(1) ("every person has the right . . . subject to §§ 63-2-203 and 63-2-204.")

Appellant admits that his GRAMA request was not reasonably specific, as required under GRAMA. He admits he requested the County Attorney's Office to produce all pages of all volumes of the following massive collections of books including: "United States Code; Pacific Reporter, all volumes; Pacific Reporter 2d, volumes 1 through the present; Pacific Reporter Digest, 1st, 2nd and 3rd editions; American Jurisprudence, all volumes; Words and Phrases, all volumes; Corpus Juris Secundum, all volumes; American Law Review, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th and federal editions, all volumes; Utah Law Review, all volumes; Federal Reports, all volumes; U.S. Reports, Lawyers Edition, all volumes; Black's Law Dictionary; and any other reference material, book, or periodical being maintained in the law library or any attorneys' offices housed in the Washington County Attorney's Office at the above address." See, Appellant's Facts para. 32.

In order to satisfy the GRAMA request of appellant, the Washington County Attorney's Office would have to copy an entire library and provide it to the appellant, or allow wholesale

copying of copyrighted books (see Point IV, below) under Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-201 (9). Appellant's petition does not allege that he identified any specific documents or portions of records during his in-person visits to the County Attorney's reception area, nor in his written GRAMA request.

The sheer volume of material which appellant requested, without his specifying in any manner with respect to the portions of the public records which may have reference to him or his cases, on its face makes his request unreasonable, and beyond the scope of GRAMA. See, also, Point IV, below.

GRAMA contemplates that after a GRAMA request is made, the governmental entity to whom the request is made shall have five to ten days to respond by producing the materials requested or denying the request. Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-204(3). Producing the materials requested would be an extreme impracticality, if not impossibility, if not illegal under copyright laws. See Point IV, below.

POINT IV

THE BOOKS AT ISSUE FROM THE COUNTY ATTORNEY'S LIBRARY ARE NOT "RECORDS" UNDER GRAMA SUBJECT TO PRODUCTION TO THE PUBLIC, BECAUSE THEY ARE COPYRIGHTED BOOKS.

1. Copyrighted Materials Are Not "Records" Under GRAMA.

GRAMA does not require production and copying of copyrighted materials. This makes good sense, since a legislative mandate to allow production and copying of copyrighted materials might

affect copyright rights. Thus, copyrighted materials are specifically excluded from the definition of "record":

(b) "Record" does not mean:
. . .

(iii) materials to which access is limited by the laws of copyright or patent unless the copyright or patent is owned by a governmental entity or political subdivision.

Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-103(18)(b)(iii) (emphasis added). The whole point of GRAMA is to allow access to government records. However, books authored or compiled by private entities are protected by copyright as authorized by the United States Constitution and federal law. They are not government records. If one wants them, one must buy them or otherwise lawfully use them.

2. Copyrighted Materials Are Also Protected From Disclosure By The United States Constitution And Federal Copyright Law.

The Constitution of the United States specifically allows for copyright protection. It provides:

Section. 8. The Congress shall have Power . . . To promote the Progress of Science and useful Arts, by securing for limited Times to Authors and Inventors the exclusive Right to their respective Writings and Discoveries; . . .

U.S. Const. Art. I § 8, Clause 8.

Congress has passed copyright laws, which protect compilations, including compilations of cases and statutes. Copyright protection subsists in original works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression. 17 U.S.C.A. §

102(a). The copyright protection specified by Section 102 "includes compilations." 17 U.S.C.A. § 103(a). A "compilation" is defined as "a work formed by the collection and assembling of pre-existing materials or of data that are selected, coordinated, or arranged . . ." 17 U.S.C.A. § 101.

The United States Supreme Court has specifically held that case reporters are subject to copyright protection. Callaghan v. Meyers, 128 U.S. 617, 32 L. Ed. 547, 9 S. Ct. 177 (1888). The Court held that the order of arranging cases, the division of law reports into volumes, and the numbering and paging of those volumes, is the lawful subject of copyright:

Such work of the reporter, which may be the lawful subject of copyright, comprehends . . . the order of arrangement of the cases, the division of the reports into volumes, the numbering and paging of the volumes, the table of the cases cited in the opinions, (where such table is made) and the subdivision of the index into appropriate, condensed titles, involving the distribution of the subjects of the various head-notes, and cross-references, where such exist.

Callaghan, 128 U.S. at 649, 9 S.Ct. at 185 (emphasis added). The landmark case of West Publishing Co. v. Mead Data Central, Inc., 799 F.2d 1219 (8th Cir. 1986) recently reaffirmed the right of a law book publisher to copyright its case reporters. And, of course, other works such as commentaries are copyright protected.

In short, case reporters, legal indexes, and other legal compilations are subject to copyright protection, a right conferred by the U.S. Constitution.

3. All Books Which Appellant Specifically Requested in his Petition Are in Fact Copyrighted.

The twelve massive sets of books which appellant requested (see Appellant's Br., Facts, para. 32) are all copyrighted. See Facts, above, paras. A-J. Each work and its copyright holder are listed above. Id. The Record at 105-137 shows the copyright page of a representative volume in each set. See also, Facts, above, paras. A-J.

Moreover, in general terms, West Publishing Company has already demonstrated to the Courts that, upon completion of each volume, it registers a copyright claim with the Registrar of Copyrights. West Publishing v. Mead, 799 F.2d at 1222.

Because the books which plaintiff seeks to be produced are copyrighted, GRAMA does not require their production.

POINT V

THE BOOKS AT ISSUE FROM THE COUNTY ATTORNEY'S LIBRARY ARE NOT "RECORDS" UNDER GRAMA SUBJECT TO PRODUCTION TO THE PUBLIC, BECAUSE THEY ARE BOOKS WHICH ARE CATALOGUED, INDEXED AND AVAILABLE IN COLLECTIONS OF LIBRARIES WHICH ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

GRAMA is designed to make certain "records" of governmental agencies open to the public. The Act specifically excludes certain books available in libraries from the definition of "records" of governmental entities:

`[R]ecord' does not mean: . . .

(vi) Books and other materials that are cata-
logued, indexed or inventoried and contained
in the collections of libraries open to the
public, regardless of physical form or char-
acteristics of the material; . . ."

Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-103(18)(b)(vi)(hereafter "subsection (vi))
(emphasis added).

All of the types of documents which GRAMA declares are not
records are not subject to GRAMA, and an agency need not produce
them. An agency can keep books closed to the general public as
long as they are in collections of libraries open to the public
somewhere.

Therefore, Subsection (vi) of Utah Code Ann. § 63-2-
103(18)(b) applies to books such as those in the County
Attorney's Office, and allows them to remain closed to the
general public, as long as they exist in public libraries.

The books which appellant seeks to use are books catalogued
and indexed in collections of libraries open to the public,
including libraries at Brigham Young University, the State
Capitol, and the University of Utah.

In addition, the Dixie College library, the Washington
County Public Library, and the Southern Utah University Library,
have the Utah Code annotated, with excerpts of relevant Utah
cases; Black's Law Dictionary; the U.S. Code; some Supreme Court
cases; and some legislative reports. (R. at 35-38.)

One might try to argue from the definition quoted under subsect. (vi), above, that the books which are defined as not being records under GRAMA, are only those particular volumes themselves which are physically located in the libraries which are open to the public, and not other volumes of the same books which are housed in government offices. Such an interpretation does not comport with the rules of statutory construction, nor with the purpose and intent of GRAMA.

A basic principle of interpreting a statute is to read an act and related statutes as a whole, and harmonize and give meaning to all provisions. See, for example, Beynon v. St. George-Dixie Lodge No. 1743, 854 P.2d 513, 518 (Utah 1993); Jensen v. IHC, 679 P.2d 903, 906-07 (Utah 1984).

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